C/CAG

CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
OF SAN MATEO COUNTY

Atherton ® Belmont ® Brisbane ™ Burlingame ™ Colma ® Daly City ® East Palo Alto ™ Foster City ™ Half Moon Bay ® Hillsborough ™ Menlo Park
Millbrae ™ Pacifica ™ Portola Valley ® Redwood City ™ San Bruno ™ San Carlos ™ San Mateo ™ San Mateo County ™ South San Francisco ™ Woodside

STORMWATER (NPDES) COMMITTEE AGENDA
2:30 PM, Thursday August 21, 2025

San Mateo County Transit District Office
1250 San Carlos Ave, 2nd Fl. Auditorium,
San Carlos, CA

***HYBRID MEETING - IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEOCONFERENCE***

This meeting of the Stormwater Committee will be held in person and by teleconference pursuant to
Government Code Section 54953(e). Members of the public will be able to participate in the meeting
remotely via the Zoom platform or in person at the location above. For information regarding how to
participate in the meeting, either in person or remotely, please refer to the instructions at the end of the
agenda.

Join by Zoom Webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83547883137?pwd=bmCT1kkrQLqDXZhShINBhGfau80ANJ.1

Zoom Webinar ID: 835 4788 3137
Passcode: 269922

Join by Phone:
Call in Number: (669) 900-6833
Zoom Webinar ID: 835 4788 3137
Passcode: 269922

Persons who wish to address the Stormwater Committee on an item to be considered at this meeting, or
on items not on this agenda, are asked to submit written comments to rbogert@smcgov.org. Spoken
public comments will also be accepted during the meeting through Zoom. Please see instructions for
written and spoken public comments at the end of this agenda.

Call to Order, Roll Call, and brief overview of teleconference meeting Breault/Bogert No
procedures. materials
Public comment on items not on the Agenda (presentations limited to Breault No
three minutes). materials
ACTION — Review and approval of the June 26, 2025 Stormwater Breault Pages 1-3

Committee meeting minutes.

City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG)
555 County Center, Redwood City, CA 94063. Telephone 650.599.1406. Fax 650.361.8227.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83547883137?pwd=bmCT1kkrQLqDXZhShlNBhGfau80ANJ.1

ACTION - Review and approval of a recommendation to update the Bogert/ Pages 4-9
Stormwater Committee Guidelines to add a primary and alternate seat Bundy
designated for OneShoreline and make minor editorial edits.

ACTION - Review and consider membership updates to the standing Ad- Bogert Pages 10-12
hoc Work Group Advancing Regional Projects.

ACTION — Review and approval of a recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly Bogert Pages 13-14
Authorized Representative to approve the Final Draft Regional

Firefighting Discharges Report on behalf of the San Mateo Countywide

Water Pollution Prevention Program at the August 28 Bay Area Municipal

Stormwater Collaborative Steering Committee.

ACTION — Review and approval of a recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly Bogert Pages 15-16
Authorized Representative to approve the Final Long-Term GSI Technical

Working Group (TWG) Summary and Recommendations Report on

behalf of the San Mateo Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program

at the August 28 Bay Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative Steering

Committee.

ACTION — Review and approval of a recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly Bogert Pages 17-18
Authorized Representative to approve the Final Draft Regional

Supplemental for New and Redevelopment on behalf of the San Mateo

Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program at the August 28 Bay

Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative Steering Committee.

INFORMATION — Receive a presentation on the Integrated Safe Routes ~ Sternkopf Pages 19-20
to School and Green Streets Pilot Program Summary Report.

. INFORMATION — Receive stormwater program related information and Bogert Pages 21-39
announcements.
. Regional Board Report Regional No
Water Board materials
Staff
. Executive Director’s Report Charpentier ~ No
materials
. Member Reports All No
materials
. Adiourn Breault No
materials

City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG)
555 County Center, Redwood City, CA 94063. Telephone 650.599.1406. Fax 650.361.8227.



PUBLIC NOTICING: All notices of C/CAG regular Board meetings, standing committee meetings,
and special meetings will be posted at the San Mateo County Court Yard, 555 County Center, Redwood
City, CA, and on C/CAG’s website at: http://www.ccag.ca.gov.

PUBLIC RECORDS: Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular
Board meeting, standing committee meeting, or special meeting are available for public inspection.
Those public records that are distributed less than 72 hours prior to a regular Board meeting are available
for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members,
of the Board. The Board has designated the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo
County (C/CAQG), located at 555 County Center, 5th Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063, for the purpose
of making public records available for inspection. Such public records are also available on C/CAG’s
website at: http://www.ccag.ca.gov. Please note that C/CAG’s office is temporarily closed to the public;
please contact Mima Crume at (650) 599-1406 to arrange for inspection of public records.

ADA REQUESTS: Persons with disabilities who require auxiliary aids or services to participate in this
meeting should contact Mima Crume at (650) 599-1406 or mcrume@smcgov.org by 10:00 a.m. prior to
the meeting date.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION DURING HYBRID MEETINGS: During hybrid meetings of the
C/CAG Stormwater Committee, members of the public may address the Committee as follows:

Written comments should be emailed in advance of the meeting. Please read the following instructions
carefully:
1. Your written comment should be emailed to rbogert@smcgov.org with the Subject line
“Stormwater Committee Meeting Comment”.
2. Your email should include the specific agenda item on which you are commenting or note that

your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda.
3. Members of the public are limited to one comment per agenda item.

4. If your emailed comment is received at least 2 hours prior to the meeting, it will be provided to the
Committee members, made publicly available on the C/CAG website along with the agenda. Emails
received less than 2 hours before the meeting will be provided to the Committee members and
included in the administrative record of the meeting as soon as practicable.

Spoken comments will be accepted during the meeting in person and through Zoom. Public comments
will be taken first by speakers in person followed by via Zoom. Please read the following instructions
carefully:

*In-person participation:

1. If you wish to speak to the Committee, please fill out a speaker’s slip located on the 2" floor
auditorium side table against the wall. If you have anything that you wish distributed to the
Committee and included in the official record, please hand it to the C/CAG staff who will distribute
the information to the Committee members and staff.

*Remote participation:
1. The Stormwater Committee meeting may be accessed through Zoom at the online location indicated
at the top of this agenda.
2. You may download the Zoom client or connect to the meeting using an internet browser. If using

City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG)
555 County Center, Redwood City, CA 94063. Telephone 650.599.1406. Fax 650.361.8227.


http://www.ccag.ca.gov/
http://www.ccag.ca.gov/
mailto:mcrume@smcgov.org
mailto:rbogert@smcgov.org

your browser, make sure you are using a current, up-to-date browser: Chrome 30+, Firefox 27+,
Microsoft Edge 12+, Safari 7+. Certain functionality may be disabled in older browsers including
Internet Explorer.

3. You will be asked to enter an email address and name. We request that you identify yourself by your
name as this will be visible online and will be used to notify you that it is your turn to speak.

4. When the C/CAG staff or Chair call for the item on which you wish to speak, click on “raise hand.”
The Clerk will activate and unmute speakers in turn. Speakers will be notified shortly before they
are called on to speak. If calling in via phone, press *9 to raise your hand and when called upon

press *6 to unmute.
5. When called, please limit your remarks to the time allotted.

If you have any questions about this agenda, please contact C/CAG staff:
Executive Director: Sean Charpentier scharpentier@smcgov.org
Stormwater Committee Staff: Reid Bogert rbogert@smcgov.org

City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG)
555 County Center, Redwood City, CA 94063. Telephone 650.599.1406. Fax 650.361.8227.


mailto:scharpentier@smcgov.org
mailto:rbogert@smcgov.org

Item 3 - Attachment 1 - Draft June 26, 2025 Stormwater Committee Minutes

Stormwater Committee
Thursday June 26, 2025
2:30 p.m.

Draft Meeting Minutes

The Stormwater Committee meeting was held in a hybrid format (i.e., in person and videoconference)
pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e). Committee members met in-person at the offices of
the San Mateo County Transit District in the City of San Carlos. Municipal staff (not part of a legislative
body of C/CAG) and members of the public could participate remotely via the Zoom platform or in-
person at the location above. Attendance at the meeting is shown in the attached table. In addition to
the Committee members, also in attendance were Reid Bogert (C/CAG staff), Dan Sternkopf (C/CAG
Staff), Sean Charpentier (C/CAG Executive Director), Sophia Palacio (C/CAG Staff), Angelica Ali (City of
San Bruno), Sarah Deicke (County of San Mateo), Brian Nguyen (City of Belmont), Elizabeth Wada (City of
Belmont), Dolan Shoblo (City of Brisbane), and Eduardo Castellanos (Town of Woodside), Ashraf Ali
(Regional Water Board). Chair Breault called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m.

1. Call to Order, Roll Call, and a brief overview of meeting procedures.
2. Public comment on items not on the agenda — No comments were received from the public.

3. ACTION — The Committee approved the draft April 17, 2025, Stormwater Committee Meeting
minutes. Motion: Vice Chair Ovadia (Town of Atherton); Second: Member Lee (City of San Bruno).
Vote: Motion passed (11:0:4). Member Lee (City of San Bruno), Member Le (City of San Carlos),
Member Sheehan (City of San Mateo) and Member Tigbao (City of Pacifica) abstained.

4. ACTION — The Committee approved a recommendation for C/CAG staff to certify and submit the
revised Low Impact Development Monitoring Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) to the Regional
Water Quality Control Board on behalf of the San Mateo County Co-permittees. The Bay Area
Municipal Stormwater Collaborative (BAMSC) developed the initial QAPP in 2023 and the QAPP has
since been revised to address Water Board comments. Motion: Member Lee (City of San Bruno);
Second: Member Mitch (City of Menlo Park). Vote: Motion passed unanimously (15:0:0).

5. INFORMATION — The Committee received a presentation on the June 30, 2025 100% trash reduction
compliance benchmark of the Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit. Reid Bogert of C/CAG
provided an overview of the next steps for permittees that will meet the benchmark, and what is
required for permittees that will not meet the benchmark.

6. INFORMATION — The item to receive a presentation on the Final San Mateo County OneWatershed
Climate Resilience Framework Report was moved to a future Committee meeting.

7. INFORMATION — The Committee received stormwater program related information and
announcements. Bogert provided an update on the upcoming CASQA conference and seminar series.
Bogert also presented on the successful responses from Permittees to Regional Water Board staff
regarding questions from Regional Water Board staff on the FY23-24 Annual Reports, as well as the



final annual report forms and SMCWPPP guidance for the FY24-25 Annual Reports, posted on
www.flowstobay.org. Additionally, Bogert provided a legislative update on AB 1313 and SB 601.
Bogert provided an overview of the MRP 1.0 unfunded mandate claim draft instructions. Bogert
discussed the FY25-26 Water Quality Permit Fees, which are being developed by the State Water
Resources Control Board. The fees are anticipated to decrease by 2%. Lastly, Bogert provided an
overview of relevant funding opportunities.

8. Regional Board Report — N/A.

9. Executive Director’s Report — C/CAG Executive Director Charpentier introduced Sophia Palacio,
C/CAG’s new intern, to the Stormwater Committee.

10. Member Reports — Chair Berault announced that he will retire at the end of September.

11. Adjourned at 3:43 p.m.



ST wnionp (ssspuamnie ,4ay10,, J0J sa1nuiw Sullesw 93s) SuljoA-uou/aAneiussatdaa Aduasde usaylo, - O
0 0 ST 9AI1eUISIdBI D1eUld) e paleudisap 4o Adewnud - X
0 JosinJadng Juswadeue|n paysialepn| pieog [0Jiuo) Aijenp Ja1e)\\ |euoiSaYy
X J032341Q SY4O0M 21|gNd - UBWI|I3S UUY Aluno) oaie|\ ues
SYJOMN J1|gNd 4O J03224IQ - lUBJWT ZBA 9PISPOO
SYJO/W\ 21]gNd 0 40322410 - WY dunfaun] 00S]2Uel4 UBS YINOoS
X (93eUJ3}|Y) UBYD3YS ULIBYIEY 091BIA UES
X (21eUJ3YY) 97 22E4D So|Je) ues
X J032341Q SY40M 21|IgNnd - 997 NeN ounJug ues
X (91U49))Y) J420ES 93ed A1) poompay
J93u13u3 UMO] WIJd3U] - IPIESJIA PeAe[ A3||e ejomod
X 1032341Q SY40M 21|gNnd - oeq3i| essl|aN eoljloed
X (1eU49))y) 493ui8ul A1) - eARH pewyy Qeuq|IIN
SYJO0/\\ 21|qNd 40 10322413 - YOH|A B3jezy 3Jed OJUdIN
X (21eU4)Y) USQQLID Blje1eN y3noJoqs||iH
S)J0/W\ 21|gNd 40 40322417 - eluidiozog Jeize|N Aeg uoo\ jJjeH
X S340/\\ J1|gNd 4O J032341J - BUAZOIg M3Jpuy A1) 491504
X (93eUJ3)|Y) ueyy PWIIES 0}|V O|ed 1se3
X S3J0/\ J1[gNd 40 J033241d - NIYD pJeydly AuD Alea
X 10323413 SY40M 21|gNnd - dnyeuo( peJq ew|o)
X (1eU493)Y) ASues) yeoN swe3duljung
X J93u13u] A1D/10329.1Q SHIOM 2l jgNnd - (J1eyD) yneaug Apuey aueqslig
10323.1Q SY4O0M 21|gNd - [93ed BYSIN juow|ag
X 10302.1Q S340/ d1|gnd - (d1eYD dIA) eIpeAQ Moy uomaYyY
Sunon (eve uosidd-uj (@1eU43)|V 10 Asewiid) aaireUaSaIdaYy Aouasy
-uoN | gv)Sunopn
ajoway ajowdy

Qduepuany

9oUBPUINY 223HWIWIO) J}BMWIOLS SZOT ‘9Z dunf




Item 4

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT
Date: August 21, 2025
To: Stormwater Committee
From: Reid Bogert, Stormwater Program Director
Subject: Review and approval of a recommendation to update the Stormwater Committee

Guidelines to add a primary and alternate seat designated for OneShoreline and
make minor editorial edits.

(For further information or questions contact Reid Bogert at rbogert@smcgov.org)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Stormwater Committee (Committee) review and approval of a recommendation to
update the Stormwater Committee Guidelines to add a primary and alternate seat designated for
OneShoreline and make minor editorial edits.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The Stormwater Committee provides policy and technical advice and recommendations to the
C/CAG Board of Directors and direction to technical subcommittees on all matters relating to
stormwater management and compliance with associated regulatory mandates from the State
Water Resources Control Board and San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board.

The following are the general issues typically addressed by the Committee:

e Review and provide recommendations for the Countywide Water Pollution Prevention
Program (Countywide Program)’s annual budget as part of the overall C/CAG budget
approval process.

e  Authorize submittal of countywide and regional compliance documents on behalf of their
respective agencies for activities performed via C/CAG through the Countywide Program or
the Bay Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative (previously, the Bay Area Stormwater
Management Agencies Association).

e  Convey relevant program and compliance information and direction to appropriate staff
and departments within their jurisdictions.

e  Form ad-hoc work groups to address particular stormwater-related issues on an as-needed
basis.

e Discuss and provide policy recommendations on stormwater issues, such as:

o0 funding stormwater compliance activities at the local and countywide level,

unfunded mandate test claims;

permit appeals and litigation;

reissuance of the Municipal Regional Permit;

permit requirements, especially those related to new and redevelopment, monitoring,

O 00O



and pollutants of concern, including trash, mercury, PCBs, and pesticides;
0 training and technical support needs for municipal staffs
0 legislation and statewide policy issues impacting member agencies

The Stormwater Committee is comprised of primarily director-level staff (or equivalent) with
decision-making authority for implementing stormwater management programs within the
member agencies in compliance with requirements in the Municipal Regional Permit. There is
one primary and one optional alternate representative from each of C/CAG’s 21 member
agencies and one non-voting executive management representative and optional alternate from
the Regional Water Quality Control Board staff.

Historically, the interests and perspectives of the San Mateo County Flood Control District (as a
separate non-population-based permittee under the Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit
(MRP), were represented on the Stormwater Committee via the Unincorporated County of San
Mateo seat, because the Flood Control District was housed within Unincorporated County’s
jurisdiction. When the Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (or OneShoreline) was
formed on January 1, 2020, it inherited all the former functions and responsibilities of the prior
County Flood Control District, including those associated with the requirements of the MRP
designated for non-population-based permittees. Accordingly, OneShoreline was formally
brought into the MRP as a separately designated co-permittee during the last reissuance process
of the permit (MRP 3.0), which became effective July 1, 2022.

Given OneShoreline’s relatively new status as a separately designated co-permittee under the
MRP and that OneShoreline is no longer represented by the Unincorporated County of San
Mateo seat on the Stormwater Committee, the Committee is being asked to consider adding a
primary and optional alternative representative for OneShoreline to the Stormwater Committee
Guidelines and roster. As such, staff recommend the Committee review and approve a
recommendation to the C/CAG Board to approve the revised Stormwater Committee Guidelines
as shown in Attachment 1.

EQUuUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS
This item is necessary for the administration/operations of C/CAG.
ATTACHMENTS

1. Revised Stormwater Committee Guidelines



Item 4 — Attachment 1 - Revised Stormwater Committee Guidelines
Irm r Commi idelin
Established: November 8, 2012

Revised: December 22, 2020/September 21, 2023/September 12, 2024/February 13,
2025/March 13, 2025/June 12, 2025/September 11, 2025

Description
The Stormwater Committee provides policy and technical advice and recommendations to the

C/CAG Board of Directors and direction to technical subcommittees on all matters relating to
stormwater management and compliance with associated regulatory mandates from the State
Water Resources Control Board and San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board.

The following are the general issues typically addressed by the Committee:

e Review and provide recommendations for the Countywide Water Pollution Prevention
Program (Countywide Program)’s annual budget as part of the overall C/CAG budget
approval process.

e Authorize submittal of countywide and regional compliance documents on behalf of their
respective agencies for activities performed via C/CAG through the Countywide Program
or the Bay Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative (previously, the Bay Area Stormwater
Management Agencies Association).

e Convey relevant program and compliance information and direction to appropriate staff
and departments within their jurisdictions.

e Form ad-hoc work groups to address particular stormwater-related issues on an as-needed

basis.

Discuss and provide policy recommendations on stormwater issues, such as:

funding stormwater compliance activities at the local and countywide level;

unfunded mandate test claims;

permit appeals and litigation;

reissuance of the Municipal Regional Permit;

permit requirements, especially those related to new and redevelopment, monitoring, and

pollutants of concern, including trash, mercury, PCBs, and pesticides;

e training and technical support needs for municipal staffs

e legislation and statewide policy issues impacting member agencies

Membership
The Stormwater Committee includes director-level staff (or equivalent) with decision-making

authority for implementing stormwater management programs within the member agencies in
compliance with requirements in the Municipal Regional Permit. There is one representative
from each of C/CAG’s 21 member agencies, one representative from the San Mateo County
Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District (also known as OneShoreline), and one non-
voting executive management representative from the Regional Water Quality Control Board
staff.

Term Limits

There are no term limits for the Stormwater Committee. Members can remain on the
Committee indefinitely or until a member voluntarily relieves themselves from the
membership.

Chair and Vice Chair

The Chair and Vice Chair for the Stormwater Committee are annually nominated and voted upon
by Committee members at a regularly scheduled meeting. The Chair manages the Committee
meetings by calling the meeting to order, leading the Committee through the agenda topics,




monitoring meeting discussion to ensure all discussion remains on topic, and leading the motion
and approval of all action items. The role of the Vice Chair is to support the Chair and act as a
stand in should the Chair be unable to attend a meeting.

Selection and Appointment Process

To streamline the process and ensure continuous representation, the Roster Table can include
designated positions and/or individually named appointments. The Roster Table also
includes a Primary Member and an Alternate Member.

The C/CAG Board of Directors shall approve all appointments of Primary and Alternate
Members.

Designated positions are executive level positions where there may be only one position (ie
Public Works Director) in the agency or there may be multiple positions (i.e., having
multiple Deputy Public Works Directors).

The C/CAG’s Board of Directors will approve the appointment of these designated positions,
effectively automatically appointing the staff member filling the designated position.

For designated positions where there are multiple positions, the jurisdiction or agency will
need to propose a member by name, and the C/CAG Board will need to approve such
appointment on an individual basis.

The City Manager or equivalent will notify the C/CAG Executive Director of any changes to
the personnel filling the designated positions, or changes to the named positions themselves.
The C/CAG Board will approve changes to the designated positions or name as necessary.

Interim or Acting appointments by the appropriate Executive to the designated positions
where there is only one position (i.e., Public Works Director) are acceptable.

Primary Members

e Primary Stormwater Committee members for C/CAG’s member agencies and
OneShoreline shall be the Public Works Director (or executive level equivalent), City
Engineer/Managing Engineer (or equivalent) held by a single person, or a staff
member holding a comparable executive position identified by the jurisdiction or
agency with responsibility for compliance under the Municipal Regional Permit.

e The Regional Water Quality Control Board member shall be the Watershed
Management Supervisor or a specified staff holding a comparable executive position
identified by the Regional Water Quality Control Board.

Alternate Members

e Each agency can have an alternate member.

e The alternate for C/CAG’s member agencies and OneShoreline can be the City
Engineer/Managing Engineer or Assistant or Deputy Director of Public (or equivalent)
held by a single person, or a staff member holding a comparable executive position
identified by the jurisdiction or agency with responsibilities for compliance under the
Municipal Regional Permit.




e The alternate for the Regional Water Quality Control Board member can be the
Watershed Management Manager or a staff member holding a comparable executive
position identified by the Regional Water Quality Control Board.

e The alternate has the authority to cast votes in lieu of the primary member.

e Attendance of an alternate member will not be recorded as attendance for the primary

member.

The Roster Table below identifies the primary and alternate Stormwater Committee
members, either by designated position or by name, where necessary, of the 2023

Stormwater Committee:

Primary
Stormwater
Committee

Member Agency Member Alternate

City of Atherton (Vice |Director of Public

Chair) Works Associate Engineer, Tim Au
Director of Public

City of Belmont Works Assistant Public Works Director
Director of Public

City of Brisbane Works/City

(Chair) Engineer Regulatory Compliance Manager
Director of Public

City of Burlingame Works Environmental Compliance Manager
Director of Public

City of Daly City Works City Engineer
City Engineer

City of East Palo Alto Environmental Services Aide
Director of Public

City of Foster City Works Manager of Engineering

City of Half Moon Director of Public

Bay Works Associate Engineer
Director of Public

City of Menlo Park  |Works Assistant Public Works Director
Director of Public

City of Millbrae Works City Engineer/Deputy Public Works Director
Deputy Director of
Public  Works/City

City of Pacifica Engineer Director of Public Works

City of Redwood City |Engineering and Senior Civil Engineer, Paige Saber
Transportation
Director
Director of Public Deputy Director of Public Works, Hae

City of San Bruno Works Won Ritchie




Director of Public

City of San Carlos Works City Engineer
Director of Public  |Deputy Public Works Director, Katherine
City of San Mateo Works Sheehan
Director of Public
City of South San Works/City
Francisco Engineer Deputy Public Works Director
Director of Public  |Deputy Director Engineering & Resource
San Mateo County Works Protection
San Mateo County  |Director of Project Manager
Flood and Sea Level |Project
Rise Resiliency Management
District
Director of Public
Works and
Town of Colma Planning Deputy Public Works Director/City Engineer
Director of Public
Town of Hillsborough [Works Deputy Director of Public Works
Town of Portola Director of Public
Valley Works Building Director
Director of Public
Works/Town
Town of Woodside Engineer Deputy Town Engineer
Watershed
Regional Water Management
Board Supervisor Watershed Management Manager




Item 5

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT
Date: August 21, 2025
To: Stormwater Committee
From: Reid Bogert, Stormwater Program Director
Subject: Review and consider membership updates to the standing Ad-hoc Work Group

Advancing Regional Projects.

(For further information or questions contact Reid Bogert at rbogert@smcgov.org)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Stormwater Committee (Committee) review and consider membership updates to the
standing Ad-hoc Work Group Advancing Regional Projects.

FI1SCcAL IMPACT

N/A

SOURCE OF FUNDS

N/A
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The Stormwater Committee currently has three standing ad-hoc work groups. These include the
Permit Implementation Work Group (established in February 2013), Funding and Financing
Workgroup (originally established in February 2013 as the Countywide Funding Initiative Work
Group and reconfigured in March 2021 to focus on Funding and Financing issues for the
Stormwater Program), and the Workgroup Advancing Regional Projects (established in February
2022). Over the years, the Permit Implementation work group has continued to meet periodically
on Municipal Regional Permit (MRP) issues and to support the Countywide Stormwater Program
budget on an annual basis. The Workgroup Advancing Regional Projects (WARP) has met
periodically in in recent years to continue evaluating funding and financing options in light of
increased MRP costs and limited revenue. The Committee reviewed and revised the membership
of the Permit Implementation and Funding and Financing work groups at the February 2025
meeting.

The WARP was established following the completion of the Regional Collaborative Program
Framework White Paper, which was developed as part of the Advancing Regional Stormwater
Management in San Mateo County project, completed in winter 2022. The WARP was identified
in the Regional Collaborative Program Framework White Paper as a necessary next step in

10



supporting ongoing efforts in the county to advance a more cost-effective approach to achieving
water quality mandates and climate resilience through regional-scale stormwater capture
projects. The timing of the WARP also aligned with the reissuance of the MRP and the
completion of the first regional project in San Mateo County, located at Orange Memorial Park
in the City of South San Francisco. The Committee approved the formation of the WARP and
appointed members to the WARP at the February 2022 Committee meeting. The initial priority
focus areas for the WARP were to meet as needed to support the process of evaluating cost-
sharing arrangements for the ongoing operations and maintenance (O&M) needs for the Orange
Memorial Park project (and potentially capital and O&M costs for other regional projects), to
consider the applicability of the Orange Memorial Park project for meeting the Green
Stormwater Infrastructure Retrofit (and alternative compliance options) under MRP 3.0 and
supporting the process of recognizing the value of these multi-benefit projects with respect to
permit compliance more broadly. At the time the WARP was formed, it was recommended that
the WARP be comprised of the Chair and Vice Chair persons of the Committee, as well as
members from the cities that are currently advancing regional projects in their jurisdictions (see
Attachment 1 for current roster). It is worth noting that not all representatives from the cities
advancing regional projects were in attendance at the February 2022 meeting when the WARP
was formed, so several agencies have “TBD” marked on the roster, since no formal members
approved joining the workgroup at that time. Agency staff from these jurisdictions, as well as
staff from other interested agencies, including OneShoreline, however, have attended past
WARP meetings as general attendees for informational purposes on a case-by-case basis.

EQUuITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS
This item is necessary for the administration/operations of C/CAG.
ATTACHMENTS

1. Current Workgroup Advancing Regional Projects Roster

11



Item 5 - Attachment 1 — Current Roster for Workgroup Advancing Regional Projects

Workgroup Advancing Regional Projects Roster (established February 2022)

Randy Breault (Chair)* City of Brisbane
Robert Ovadia (Vice Chair)* Town of Atherton
Maziar Bozorginia City of Half Moon Bay
Paul Willis Town of Hillsborough
City representative(s) TBD City of Belmont

City representative(s) TBD City of Redwood City
City representative(s) TBD City of San Bruno

City representative(s) TBD

City of South San Francisco

* When this workgroup was formed it was proposed that two seats on the workgroup be reserved for the Chair and

Vice Chair persons of the Stormwater Committee.

12




Item 6

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT
Date: August 21, 2025
To: Stormwater Committee
From: Reid Bogert, Stormwater Program Director
Subject: Review and approval of a recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly Authorized

Representative to approve the Final Draft Regional Firefighting Discharges
Report on behalf of the San Mateo Countywide Water Pollution Prevention
Program at the August 28 Bay Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative Steering
Committee.

(For further information or questions contact Reid Bogert at rbogert(@smcgov.org)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Stormwater Committee (Committee) review and approve a recommendation for
C/CAG’s Duly Authorized Representative to approve the Final Draft Regional Firefighting
Discharges Report on behalf of the San Mateo Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program
at the August 28 Bay Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative Steering Committee.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Provision C.15.b.iii (Emergency Discharges of Firefighting Water and Foam) of the San
Francisco Bay Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP) requires Permittees to collectively
submit a Firefighting Discharges Report by September 30, 2025. The purpose of the Regional
Firefighting Discharges Report is to describe progress on, and recommendations regarding the
implementation of items in MRP Provision C.15.b.iii.(2), which is intended to address discharges
of firefighting water and foam associated with emergency firefighting activities that may impact
water quality. Importantly, provision C.15.b.iii only addresses discharges associated with
emergency firefighting only and explicitly does not address discharges of firefighting water and
foam associated with non-emergency firefighting activities, such as during firefighting training.

The Regional Firefighting Discharges Report, which was developed collaboratively among the
partner agencies of the Bay Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative, or BAMSC) summarizes
discussions from the Regional Firefighting Discharges Work Group (Regional Work Group)
meetings along with insights gathered from separate meetings with local firefighting departments
and post-fire restoration contractors. The Regional Firefighting Discharges Report also addresses
the specific best management practices (BMPs) outlined in C.15.b.1ii.(2) and the MRP Fact Sheet
regarding this provision. A significant focus of the Regional Firefighting Discharges Report is to
better understand and document what MRP Permittees and local firefighting agencies are
currently implementing as standard operating guidelines and BMPs to prevent water quality

13



impacts associated with emergency firefighting activities and to recommend further BMP
enhancements where needed to ensure adequate BMPs and standard protocols are in place from a
water quality perspective. Best Management Practice types described in the report range from
procedural to administrative to structural, and span all phases of firefighting activities, from pre-
emergency, firefighting and post-fire BMP implementation (including incident cleanup and
reporting). The Regional Firefighting Discharges Report also evaluates the current use of
firefighting foams and emphasizes that consistent with state law, the least harmful foam products
are currently in use. Lastly, as required by the MRP, the Regional Firefighting Discharges Report
documents the development of two sets of outreach materials to be distributed broadly by local
agency staff to 1) containment and cleanup contractors that are hired by private parties to
participate in the containment and cleanup of discharges of firefighting water and foam and 2) to
industrial sites that are prone to firefighting emergencies, with a focus on good housekeeping
practices and preventive measures.

The final draft Regional Firefighting Discharges Report will be approved at the August 28
BAMSC Steering Committee. Following BAMSC approval, the final report will be incorporated
into the Countywide Stormwater Program Annual Report for submittal by the San Mateo County
Permittees in September. San Mateo County Permittees and Countywide Program staff have
participated in the Regional Workgroup and have provided input on the prior draft versions of
the final draft report, which were circulated to the Commercial and Industrial and Municipal
Maintenance Sub-Committees as well as the Stormwater Committee for review. Staff
recommend the Committee review and approve a recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly
Authorized Representative to approve the final draft Regional Firefighting Discharges Report at
the August 28 BAMSC Steering Committee.

EQUuUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS

This item is necessary for the administration/operations of C/CAG.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Final Draft Regional Firefighting Discharges Report (The document is available on the

C/CAG website at: https://ccag.ca.gcov/committees/ stormwater-committee/. See “Additional
Agenda Materials” for the relevant Stormwater Committee meeting.)

14



Item 7

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT
Date: August 21, 2025
To: Stormwater Committee
From: Reid Bogert, Stormwater Program Director
Subject: Review and approval of a recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly Authorized

Representative to approve the Final Long-Term GSI Technical Working Group
(TWG) Summary and Recommendations Report on behalf of the San Mateo
Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program at the August 28 Bay Area
Municipal Stormwater Collaborative Steering Committee.

(For further information or questions contact Reid Bogert at rbogert@smcgov.org)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Stormwater Committee (Committee) review and approve a recommendation for
C/CAG’s Duly Authorized Representative to approve the Final Long-Term GSI Technical
Working Group (TWG) Summary and Recommendations Report on behalf of the San Mateo
Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program at the August 28 Bay Area Municipal
Stormwater Collaborative Steering Committee.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Provision C.3.j.ii (4) of the San Francisco Bay Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP)
states that Permittees may, together with Regional Water Board staff and impartial science
experts (e.g., SFEIL, SFEP, U.S. EPA Region 9), collectively form a Technical Working Group
(TWG) to discuss long-term Green Stormwater Infrastructure (GSI) goals and recommend long-
term percentage reductions in Permittees’ impervious surfaces, at individual, countywide, and
regional scales. The TWG should prioritize discussion of long-term GSI goals for development
and redevelopment projects not already captured by Provision C.3.b, and in particular, public
road and right of way reconstruction projects that are not already defined as Regulated Projects
by Provision C.3.b.ii.(5). The permit states the TWG should additionally review Best
Management Practices (BMPs) and performance metrics and should consider linkages to climate
change impacts and resiliency including the benefits of urban forestry. MRP Provision C.3.j.v (7)
states that the Permittees shall collectively submit a report summarizing any TWG efforts and
recommendations for long-term percentage reductions in Permittees’ impervious surfaces with
the September 2025 Annual Report.

The Bay Area Municipal Regional Collaborative (BAMSC) developed the Long-term GSI
Technical Working Group Summary and Recommendations Report (LTGSI Report) via the

15



TWG. The LTGSI Report meets the requirements of the MRP and summarizes discussions at the
various TWG meetings, including GSI opportunities, successes, challenges, and issues from the
perspective of both Permittees and Regional Water Board staff, followed by a description of
Permittee Recommendations based on discussions with Water Board staff during the TWG
meetings. The Permittee Recommendations provides a statement of guiding goals and principles
and then summarizes the desired elements of a framework for crediting public projects towards
compliance with future numeric retrofit requirements, including project phasing, project types,
and benefits to be recognized within the framework. The last section of the report presents
examples of potential project types and lists recommended next steps for the TWG moving
forward. The LTGSI Report describes the proposed Permittee Recommendations and next steps
with the consideration that these are high level recommendations derived from the TWG
meetings and that this is a starting point for future discussions of the TWG during next Fiscal
Year and beyond, as the permit goes through the next reissuance process.

The final draft LTGSI Report will be approved at the August 28 BAMSC Steering Committee.
Following BAMSC approval, the final report will be incorporated into the Countywide
Stormwater Program Annual Report for submittal by the San Mateo County Permittees in
September. San Mateo County Permittees and Countywide Program staff have participated in the
TWG and have provided input on the development of the final draft LTGSI Report. Staff
recommend the Committee review and approve a recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly
Authorized Representative to approve the final draft LTGSI Report at the August 28 BAMSC
Steering Committee.

EQUuUITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS

This item is necessary for the administration/operations of C/CAG.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Final Draft Long-term GSI Summary and Recommendations Report (The document is

available on the C/CAG website at: https://ccag.ca.gov/committees/ stormwater-committee/.
See “Additional Agenda Materials” for the relevant Stormwater Committee meeting.)

16



Item 8

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT
Date: August 21, 2025
To: Stormwater Committee
From: Reid Bogert, Stormwater Program Director
Subject: Review and approval of a recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly Authorized

Representative to approve the Final Draft Regional Supplemental for New and
Redevelopment on behalf of the San Mateo Countywide Water Pollution
Prevention Program at the August 28 Bay Area Municipal Stormwater
Collaborative Steering Committee.

(For further information or questions contact Reid Bogert at rbogert(@smcgov.org)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Stormwater Committee (Committee) review and approve a recommendation for
C/CAG’s Duly Authorized Representative to approve the Final Draft Regional Supplemental for
New and Redevelopment on behalf of the San Mateo Countywide Water Pollution Prevention
Program at the August 28 Bay Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative Steering Committee.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

Provision C.3.j.iv of the San Francisco Bay Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP),
requires Permittees to document and report on activities related to “participating in processes to
promote green infrastructure.” Over the years, the Permittees and Programs operating under the
MRP have chosen to report on these activities at a regional level via the Bay Area Municipal
Stormwater Collaborative (BAMSC) and by developing a Regional Supplement for New
Development and Redevelopment (Regional Supplemental, Attachment 1). Most of the 2024-25
reported activities under Provision C.3.j.iv covered in the Regional Supplemental were met
completely by BAMSC member activities as documented in the report, except where otherwise
noted or by Permittees in their own reports. As in prior years, several activities documented in
the Regional Supplement were supported or implemented directly by the San Mateo Countywide
Program Director on behalf of the San Mateo County Permittees and the BAMSC.

Via the BAMSC, Bay Area MRP Program and Permittee representatives contributed to the final
draft Regional Supplemental, the final draft of which was circulated to the Stormwater
Committee on August 8. The final draft Regional Supplemental will be approved at the August
28 BAMSC Steering Committee. Following BAMSC approval, the final report will be
incorporated into the Countywide Stormwater Program Annual Report for submittal by the San
Mateo County Permittees in September. Staff recommend the Committee review and approve a

17



recommendation for C/CAG’s Duly Authorized Representative to approve the final draft
Regional Supplemental at the August 28 BAMSC Steering Committee.

EQUuITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS
This item is necessary for the administration/operations of C/CAG.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Final Draft Supplemental for New and Redevelopment (The document is available on the
C/CAG website at: https://ccag.ca.gov/committees/ stormwater-committee/. See “Additional
Agenda Materials” for the relevant Stormwater Committee meeting.)

18



Item 9

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT
Date: August 21, 2025
To: Stormwater Committee
From: Dan Sternkopf, C/CAG Senior Program Specialist
Subject: Receive a presentation on the Integrated Safe Routes to School and Green Streets

Pilot Program Summary Report.

(For further information or questions contact Dan Sternkopf at dsternkopf(@smcgov.org)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Stormwater Committee (Committee) receive a presentation on the Integrated Safe
Routes to School and Green Streets Pilot Program Summary Report.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A
SOURCE OF FUNDS

Local vehicle registration fee revenue dedicated to regional congestion management and
stormwater management activities.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The Integrated Safe Routes to School and Green Streets Pilot Program Summary Report (Report
— see Attachment 1) catalogs the successes and lessons learned from the Integrated Safe Routes
to School and Green Streets Infrastructure Pilot Program (Pilot Program). The Pilot Program was
developed by C/CAG with the primary intent of advancing pilot integrated infrastructure projects
throughout San Mateo County that explicitly bridge the goals of active transportation
improvements near schools with the water quality and community benefit goals of green
stormwater infrastructure (GSI). A secondary objective of the Pilot Program was to demonstrate
the potential cost savings of integrating infrastructure planning and implementation between the
transportation and stormwater management departments of local agencies. By planning drainage
and water quality improvements with active transportation infrastructure improvements together,
there is a potential cost-savings for local agencies by “only digging once” and expanding co-
benefits, such as enhanced safety, community greening, reduced urban heat island effects, among
others.

The Pilot Program was initiated in 2017 and the last of the ten pilot projects was completed in

2024. C/CAG leveraged $2.1 million in local vehicle registration fee revenue dedicated to
regional congestion management and stormwater management activities. The Pilot Program was

19



available to any C/CAG member agency in the county and participating agencies were required
to provide at minimum 15 percent matching contributions to leverage the grant funds. To achieve
the program goals, the projects also needed to demonstrate an approximate split in program
components to achieve Safe Routes to School (SRTS) and GSI benefits.

The Report summarizes the Pilot Program and contains 1.) an overview of the Pilot Program, 2.)
an overview of the typologies used in the Pilot Program, 3.) project case studies, and 4.) lessons
learned.

The ten pilot projects focus intersection and mid-block crossing improvements near schools.
Within this context, the projects model a range of conditions and refer to the three relevant
typologies for public Right-of-Way sustainable streets projects described in the San Mateo
County Sustainable Streets Master Plan, including Sustainable Street Curb Extensions,
Sustainable Street Connectivity Improvements, and Sustainable Streetscape Redesign Projects.

The project case studies section covers each project’s background, sustainable streets typology,
project cost, and sustainable streets components.

The lessons learned section was developed by surveying the lead staff on each pilot project for
feedback to the extent that information and data were available after project completion. The
main categories of lessons learned include planning and design, construction, post-construction
operations and maintenance, and considerations for integrating projects, funding considerations,
and future projects.

Staff will provide a verbal presentation on the Report.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Integrated Safe Routes to School and Green Streets Pilot Program Summary Report (The
document is available on the C/CAG website at: https://ccag.ca.gov/committees/ stormwater-

committee/. See “Additional Agenda Materials” for the relevant Stormwater Committee
meeting.)

20



Item 10

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT
Date: August 21, 2025
To: Stormwater Committee
From: Reid Bogert, Stormwater Program Director
Subject: Receive stormwater program related information and announcements.

(For further information or questions contact Reid Bogert at rbogert@smcgov.org)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Stormwater Committee (Committee) receive stormwater program related information
and announcements.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

C/CAG’s Stormwater Committee provides policy and technical advice and recommendations to
the C/CAG Board of Directors and direction to technical subcommittees on all matters relating to
stormwater management and compliance with associated regulatory mandates from the State
Water Resources Control Board and San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board.
Staff provides regular updates on information regarding stormwater compliance and other
Countywide Stormwater Program activities, as detailed below for the month of January.

1) C/CAG Board updates:
e July — Approved Resolution 25-51 amending the Stormwater Committee guidelines by

designating Paige Saber, Senior Civil Engineer as the alternate representative for the City
of Redwood City.

e August — None (no meeting)

2) Annual Reports:

e FY23-24 Annual Reports - On March 3, 2025, Regional Water Board staff distributed a
memo to all MRP countywide program managers outlining staff review of the Fiscal
Year 2023-24 Annual Reports. The memo documented general feedback to most/all
permittees regulated under the MRP to help inform future reporting, though to some
extent the memo was curated to each specific countywide program and in some instances
select permittees were flagged in the memo regarding specific parts of the Annual
Reports that were either deemed incomplete or inaccurate or that were referred to as
examples for sufficient reporting. Regional Water Board staff sent separate permittee-
specific emails to all municipal permittees in San Mateo County and requested responses
back from 14 permittees by May 16. All 14 permittees have responded to Regional Water
Board staff. Responses have been or will be posted on SMARTS. Regional Water Board
staff has requested to attend planned C.3.h inspections of Low Impact Development

21



facilities within three permittee jurisdictions as follow-up to their inquiry on the Annual
Reports. Water Board staff has also followed up in late July/early August with a few
agencies regarding trash reduction documentation from FY23-24 and prior reports.
Responses have been provided, accordingly.

e FY24-25 Annual Reports — The Countywide Program is in the process of developing the
FY24-25 Program Annual Report (estimated delivery by August 29), as well as the C.10
sections of the permittee Annual Reports (estimated delivery by August 18). As in past
years, staff will circulate the Program Annual Report for Review the same date that draft
jurisdictional Annual Reports are due to EOA for review (August 29, via email to Prajna
Shetty, pshetty@eoainc.com). Program staff will plan to send comments back on
jurisdictional reports by September 12 and the final draft Program Annual Report will be
distributed by September 19.

3) Stormwater Legislation: C/CAG staff has been tracking two bills of interest in the California

4)

State Legislature during the first year of the 2025-2026 Legislative Cycle, as detailed below:

e SB 601 (Allen) — Nexus Waters: This bill would amend the Porter-Cologne Water
Quality Control Act, expanding water quality protections in California to “nexus waters”
to mirror pre-Sackett (Sackett v. US EPA) Waters of the US (WOTUS) coverage under
the federal Clean Water Act, thereby incorporating these waters into water quality plans,
monitoring, and NPDES permit regimes. The bill would also mandate permit enrollment
for regulated industries via local permit applications and would expand civil suit
provisions to local prosecutors and impose civil monetary penalties regarding nexus
waters. The bill is sponsored by California Coast Keeper and is intended to fill a
regulatory gap under the post-Sackett ruling. It would, however, significantly increase
NPDES permit requirements and costs for newly regulated entities and municipalities
who would be subject to stormwater discharge prohibitions on all newly designated nexus
waters. In response to the most recent round of amendments to the bill, CASQA is
submitting an updated “Oppose Unless Amended” coalition letter to the Chair of the
Assembly Appropriations Committee. Following the C/CAG Board of Directors approval
of an Oppose position on the bill in June, C/CAG remains listed as signatory on the
coalition letter (Attachment 1).

August 13, 2025 Water Board Information Item on MRP and MRP 4.0 Planning: The San
Francisco Bay Regional Water Board held an information item on the Municipal Regional
Stormwater Permit (MRP) on August 13, 2025. The overall intent of the information item
was to summarize the MRP regulatory framework within context of the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) stormwater permits in California and to provide a
focused status update on two important new/modified provisions of the current permit (MRP
3.0): Provision C.3 (New and Redevelopment) and Provision C.8 (Water Quality
Monitoring). Water Board staff presented the context and background for the MRP and these
two provisions and described the current status of implementation of C.3 and C.8 as well as
some early considerations with respect to the development of the reissuance of the MRP,
which is planned for the end of Fiscal Year 2026-27. Following Water Board staff
presentations, representatives from the Bay Area Municipal Stormwater Collaborative
(BAMSC) presented a status update from the perspective of MRP permittees and programs,

22



S)

focusing on successes and challenges of implementing C.3 and C.8 as well as initial
recommendations for making changes to the reissued permit (MRP 4.0).

BAMSC representatives focused primarily on the challenges of implementing C.3 in terms of
newly regulated project types, especially road maintenance and reconstruction and single-
family home requirements, as well as expanded requirements to treat the frontage areas of
new and redevelopment projects. For C.8, the larger focus was on the significant increase in
costs of implementing the new requirements related to Low Impact Development and Trash
Monitoring, as well as logistical challenges of doing the monitoring, and whether the results
will meaningfully inform management actions. Water Board members were responsive to
concerns around increased costs as well as whether the Water Board can maintain current
level implementation or is legally bound to increase requirements from permit to permit.
Water Board members also reflected on the shared desire to have a more thorough and
thoughtful reissuance process during the next reissuance, as compared to the adoption
process for MRP 3.0.

Relatedly, Regional Water Board staff and the MRP Permittees/Programs are beginning
initial dialogues regarding the reissuance of the MRP, which is currently set to expire June
30, 2027. The BAMSC held an internal all-day MRP 4.0 discussion on July 26, 2025. During
this initial meeting the BAMSC members brainstormed ideas around guiding principles and
core tenets to support the reissuance process and discussed high level priority issues for each
of the primary provisions in the MRP. This is the first of many coordination meetings that
will occur over the next two (or more) years as the permit is negotiated. Regional Water
Board staff plan to convene a kick-off meeting for the negotiation process in October. The
Countywide Program will keep the Stormwater Committee and local Permittee
representatives directly engaged in this process and will likely work with the Ad-hoc MRP
Implementation Workgroup to support future meetings and provide input to Regional Water
Board staff on key points.

MRP 1.0 Unfunded Mandate Draft Claim Instructions: On July 2, the State Controller’s
Office (SCO) issued the final claim instructions for reimbursement claims pursuant to the
MRP 1.0 unfunded mandate test claims led by the County of Santa Clara, City of San Jose,
City of Dublin, which were partially approved by the Commission on State Mandates in
January 2025. According to the claim instructions, municipalities must submit claims to the
SCO and be delivered or postmarked on or before October 30, 2025, before a late fee of 10%
is assessed. A separate claim must be filed for each fiscal year, and claims filed more than
one year after the filing date will not be accepted. Claims can be submitted only for costs
incurred between December 1, 2009 and December 31, 2017 and only for eligible costs
related to Municipal Maintenance (Sections C.2.b, C.2.c, C.2.e, C.2.f), Monitoring &
Reporting (Sections C.8.b—h and subparts), Trash Reduction (Sections C.10.a—d), Special
Studies (Sections C.11.f — mercury; C.12.f — PCBs). Many of the eligible costs are related to
work completed by C/CAG on behalf of the San Mateo County permittees; however,
C/CAG’s funding is almost entirely comprised of dedicated “stormwater fees,” which
according to the claim instructions are not eligible for reimbursement. As stated on page 17
of the claim instructions:

23



“...reimbursement for this mandate from any source, including but not limited to, state
and federal funds, any service charge, fee, or assessment authority to offset all or part of
the costs of this program, and any other funds that are not the claimant’s proceeds of
taxes shall be identified and deducted from any claim submitted for reimbursement.”

Essentially, only costs incurred and paid for by locally generated funds from a jurisdiction’s
tax base via the General Fund are eligible for reimbursement. Permittees are encouraged to
evaluate the potential cost-benefit of developing and submitting claims for eligible
expenditures (see Attachment 2 for Table of Relevant and Eligible Reimbursement Cost
Categories for San Mateo County Permittees). Given the Countywide Program costs are not
eligible, staff does not recommend the Permittees consider enlisting the Countywide Program
to support the reimbursement process. It is also worth considering the effort required to
provide sufficient backup documentation for submitted claims (i.e., invoices, staff timecards,
etc.) going back potentially fifteen years, as well as the potential for a State audit of
submitted claims. There is also the potential that the State Budget does not include funding
any given year for appropriations to unfunded mandate claim reimbursements (which was the
case this past Fiscal Year for an eligible claim process in Orange County).

6) SCOTUS Decision on City & County of San Francisco v. EPA: On Mar 4, 2025 the Supreme
Court of the United States (SCOTUS) issued a decision on City & County of San Francisco v.
EPA regarding receiving water limitations and “cause or contribute” language in NPDES
permits. The Court rejected the EPA’s authority to impose “end-result” provisions in NPDES
permits under the Clean Water Act and directed EPA to use specific measures and limits that
permittees can implement to protect Water Quality Standards (essentially prescriptive numeric
effluent limits on discharges and associated control measures to ensure Water Quality Standards
are achieved). For stormwater NPDES permits this is a significant change from the use of end-
result “receiving water limitations” provisions in which permits require the implementation of
BMP programs tied to watershed management plans with specific timelines and schedules to
move towards achieving desired end-result conditions over time and to adaptively manage BMP
programs to continually make progress.

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) has developed and released two
interim guidance memos on the SCOTUS decision, providing direction to the Regional Water
Boards in implementing future permits (see Attachment 3). One memo addresses NPDES
wastewater permits and the other addresses Phase I MS4 permits. Neither memo yet addresses
statewide orders. Meaning, these orders do not yet address the Phase II Permit, CGP, or IGP.

These documents are public, though the State Water Board does not plan to post them on their
website as they anticipate the memos will be revised based on experience and comments from
interested parties.

Key takeaways from the Phase I MS4 permit memo:
e The State Water Board memo states that the City and County of SF v. EPA decision

does not apply to MS4 permits, as it was based upon permits issued under Section
301(b)(1)(C) of the Clean Water Act, not under 402(p)(3)(B)
e It notes the State Water Board and Regional Water Boards also have authority for

24



7)

requiring receiving water limitations under State law

e It provides model language for Findings and the Fact Sheet for Regional Water
Boards to use in Phase I permits, supporting the two points above

¢ Bottom line — MS4 Permittees should expect that no changes will be proposed by the
Water Boards to MS4 permits, based upon this interim guidance memo

e While the memo does not yet apply to the Phase II permit, it is expected the same
rationale will be applied

The California Stormwater Quality Association (CASQA) continues to stay involved with
this process (and submitted a comment letter to the State Water Board providing perspective
from stormwater agencies in July). Staff will keep the Committee aware of future outcomes
and updates pertaining to the MRP reissuance.

Funding Opportunities: The Countywide Stormwater Program continues to track and

evaluate funding opportunities to support program developments and C/CAG’s member
agencies with opportunities to fund local stormwater projects and programs. The California
Grants Portal is a useful resource to track statewide and regional funding opportunities -
https://www.grants.ca.gov/.

Caltrans Community Cleanup & Workforce Development Grant (CCWDG) - $25M
approved in the FY25/26 state budget via FY25/26 Clean CA Program. Competitive
grant program focused on litter abatement on local rights-of-way. The primary goals of
the grant are to remove litter and graffiti while also creating job opportunities through
workforce development. A key objective is to encourage grantees to train and employ
individuals from marginalized populations, and to have local agencies participate in the
Clean California Community Designation Program. Guidelines are forthcoming.

State budget - Approved & Enacted: The California Legislature passed a roughly $325B
budget in mid-June 2025. Governor Newsom signed the budget act (SB 101) and several
associated trailer bills on June 27, 2025. The enacted FY25-26 state budget is
approximately $321.1B in total spending, with about $228.4B from the General. The state
addressed an $11.8-$12B deficit through targeted spending cuts (~$2.8B), tapping
reserves (about $15.7B), and shifting funds from special-purpose sources.

Prop 4 (Climate Bond) - Authorized $10B in general obligation bond funding for climate
resilience, including stormwater capture projects and urban greening. Stormwater
management is included with $110M total allocated from the total bond authorization.
For FY25-26, the State Water Board plans to allocate approximately $1M to support
development of the initial grant guidelines for the Prop 4 Stormwater Grant Program. The
State anticipates releasing draft guidelines for FY25-26 in January 2026.

C/CAG Budget Requests - As reported in prior updates to the Committee, C/CAG
submitted several state and federal earmark requests for the FY26 budget cycles. The
House Transportation HUD Appropriations bill includes $1.2 million for the Coastal
Resiliency Project requested by Congressman Liccardo. The bill was approved by the
subcommittee Monday and should be approved by the full Appropriations Committee

25



tomorrow. On the US Senate side, C/CAG’s Stormwater Program requested $1.5 million
for the Integrated Watershed (OneWatershed Strategic Plan) Planning project and
$2.96M for the Colma El Camino Real Safety Improvements Project. Neither were
approved in the Senate Appropriations Committee. On the House side, C/CAG also
submitted a $1.2M request for the Coastal Resiliency Project (signal improvements and
emergency response planning) requested through Congressman Liccardo’s Office. The
House Transportation HUD Appropriations bill was approved by the Subcommittee and
the full House Appropriations Committee.

EQuITY IMPACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS

This item is necessary for the administration and operations of C/CAG.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Draft CASQA Coalition Letter to House Appropriations Committee Re: SB 601 (Oppose
Unless Amendments)

2) Table of Relevant and Eligible Reimbursement Claim Cost Categories for San Mateo
County Permittees

3) Memos from the State Water Resources Control Board Re Initial Guidance to the
Regional Waterboards on the SCOTUS Decision on Waters of the US (pertaining to MS4
and Wastewater NPDES Permits)

26



August 23, 2025

The Honorable Assemblymember Buffy Wicks
Chair, Assembly Appropriations Committee
1021 O Street, Suite 8220

SUBJECT: SB 601 (Allen): WATER: WASTE DISCHARGE
OPPOSE UNLESS AMENDED - AS AMENDED MAY 5, 2025

Dear Chair Wicks

The California Stormwater Quality Association and the organizations listed must respectively Oppose SB 601
(Allen), Unless Amended.

We are thankful to the author for ongoing dialogue and conversation, with a focus on the author’s stated intent of
maintaining status quo with the definition of Waters of the United States (WOTUS), prior to the Supreme Court of the
United States (SCOTUS) decision in Sackett v. Environmental Protection Agency (Sackett) issued in May 2023.

We are also committed to supporting the implementation of the Governor's Water Supply Strategy (August 2022),
which calls for expanded local stormwater capture projects in cities and towns with the goal of increasing annual
supply capacity by at least 250,000 acre-feet by 2030 and 500,000 acre-feet by 2040.

However, SB 601 currently contains a definition for “nexus waters” that is not yet consistent with maintaining status
quo prior to the Sackett decision, and would present barriers to stormwater capture projects that would advance the
Water Supply Strategy. As these changes are foundational to the underlying law for all water regulation in California,
the implications of such changes, and potential unintended consequences, are critical to resolve prior to action by the
Legislature.

SB 601 proposes to regulate, under state law, all waterbodies that previously fell under the federal definition of
WOTUS as “nexus waters.” However, the way SB 601 defines “nexus waters” is fundamentally different from how
WOTUS has historically been defined. Under federal law, WOTUS is defined by specifying which waters are
included. In contrast, SB 601 takes an inverse approach — defining all waters as “nexus waters” unless they are
explicitly exempted. This inversion significantly broadens applicability and could extend to waterbodies that were
never considered WOTUS, even prior to the Sackett decision.

Because the bill would effectively pre-determine jurisdiction over waterbodies by default, rather than through case-by-
case determinations, it creates uncertainty and could subject stormwater capture and critical water infrastructure
projects to unnecessary and unintended regulatory barriers. To ensure the definition of “nexus waters” is workable —
particularly for stormwater — it must include clear and explicit exemptions. This level of clarity, which we have
consistently requested under the federal WOTUS framework, becomes even more critical under SB 601's structure.
These exemptions are essential for maintaining the intended status quo, supporting the implementation of
California’s Water Supply Strategy, and avoiding significant impacts to municipal stormwater programs across the
state. Without these changes, municipalities and water agencies across the state will be burdened with significant
compliance and legal costs that will inevitably be passed on to taxpayers at a time when California is already
grappling with affordability challenges.

27



The type of stormwater facilities and other related infrastructure projects that are potentially vulnerable to jurisdiction
under the current definition of “nexus waters,” include, but are not limited to:

MS4 conveyance facilities
Detention and settling basins
Stormwater treatment systems
Infiltration facilities

Bioswales

Groundwater recharge facilities
Green infrastructure projects

Requested Amendments

To address these foundational concerns, we are requesting the following amendments:

Ensure consistency with WOTUS definition pre-Sackett: Add language that specifically exempts all
waters that would have been considered jurisdictional under the WOTUS definition issued on January 18,
2023

Specifically exempt stormwater infrastructure:

0 Add an additional exemption for stormwater control features constructed to convey, treat, or store
stormwater designed to meet the requirements of the Clean Water Act (including permits issued
pursuant to CWA section 402(p)).

0 Add to an existing exemption (7) stormwater capture and treatment systems

Avoid unintended consequences: In addition to the above two amendments, remove the exceptions in
(15)(A) and (15)(B).

Remove Civil Monetary Penalties: Strike Section 8. This section presents very real affordability
challenges for public agencies and their ratepayers

In summary, while we appreciate the author's intent to maintain regulatory consistency following the Sackett decision,
SB 601's current "nexus waters" definition creates an overly broad framework that extends beyond historical WOTUS
jurisdiction and threatens California’s critical water supply goals. We respectfully urge the committee to require the
requested amendments to ensure proper exemptions for stormwater infrastructure, maintain true consistency with
pre-Sackett WOTUS definitions, and support the Governor's Water Supply Strategy. With these targeted changes,
SB 601 can achieve its environmental protection objectives without creating unintended barriers to the water supply
projects California desperately needs. Thank you for your consideration.

Respectfully,

CC: Nikita Korradi, Assembly Appropriations Committee

28



s)S09) Wwelbold 1o} YN SOA ON 121D %4 9%d S8IpNIS UOISIaAI] g§0d pue Aoy
pue 'Ll D
S)S09) Wwelbo.d Jo} ¥N SOA ON 'poLD 0z o9%d uonualay juswnooq pue Bunlodey
B I'P'0L'D
(s1s00 S9A S9A 901D 0¢ 978d (syouysiq |ou0)
weJiboud 1o} YN) JoBJJU0D pOO|4 "Oul JOU) UB|d Uoi}oNpay peoT ysel] wis|-buo
ybnouayy 1o puy-ul usaq
aney Ael\ “sueid dojansp
0} S1S09 dayiw.Iad
‘aje|dwa} YYNSYE
s}s0Q welbold 10} YN aghep SOA 1'q'0L'0 6l 9%d sjods JoH ysel |
pajonpap Buipuny juels ON SOA neoLo gl 9%d (e1essjoymyjielal saioe O < Jo dod
00021 < seapiwuad -oul Jou) ainyde) ysel] ||n4 wnwiuip
S}s0) weibold 10} YN SOA pajdwes 'e’gL'0 8l 9%d (syou3sIQ [04JU0Q POO|4 "dul Jou) POyidI
2IoM Buijoel| uoionpay peoT ysel| pue peoT ysel] auleseq
S}a|ul 8SOYM
salouaby
(s3s00 SOA S9A I'e'0L'0 Ll 978d (syousi@ [onuoQ
weibolid 10} ¥N) 10e43U0D poO|4 DUl JOU) Ue|d UoIONPay peoT ysel| wis|-Huoys
ybno.uyy 40 pupy-ul usaq
aney Ae|\ ‘sueid dojanep
0} S1S09 dayIwIad
‘aje|dws} YVNSYdL
S1s09) welboid 1o} YN SOA ON Inbg o /1 9%d 92110N pue buniodsay Buliojiuo
21680
s)S09) welbold 1o} ¥N SOA ON IN9'Q D ol 9%d 196png/aiewnsg AlaAljaq Juswipas
s}soQ welbold 10} YN SSA ON np'g0 9l 9%d Apnig o1ydiowosn
seloN sogweiboid | oolt0 | i enere | 0q | saimos | 9010 sioneiauos sieis) sennoy slaseinquios

(seapruog AJuno)) 09JeJA UBS I0J S9LI0F9IB)) 1S0)) WIR[D) JUSWASINQUIINY 9[qISI[H PUL JUBAJ[OY JO 9[qe]) T JUdWYOeRY — ()] WoI]

29



Item 10 - Attachment 3 - Memos from the State Water Resources Control Board Re Initial Guidance to the
Regional Waterboards on the SCOTUS Decision on Waters of the US (pertaining to MS4 and Wastewater
NPDES Permits)

INTERIM GUIDANCE FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF RECEIVING WATER
LIMITATIONS/END-RESULT REQUIREMENTS IN PHASE 1" MUNICIPAL SEPARATE
STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) NPDES PERMITS

This document outlines a stepwise approach for the Water Boards to follow in
issuing/re-issuing phase 1 MS4 NPDES permits following the U.S. Supreme Court’s
decision in City and County of San Francisco v. U.S. EPA. The State Water Resources
Control Board (State Water Board) has issued a series of precedential decisions
governing MS4 permits and receiving water limitations. These precedential decisions
were issued subsequent to a Ninth Circuit decision (Defenders of Wildlife v. Browner
(1999) 191 F.3d 1159) holding that the Clean Water Act does not require MS4
discharges to strictly comply with water quality standards pursuant to Clean Water Act
section 301(b)(1)(C), but that NPDES permitting agencies have the discretion to require
MS4 discharges to comply with such standards. Those State Water Board decisions
have relied on the authority in Clean Water Act section 402(p)(3)(B) and the Porter-
Cologne Water Quality Control Act to require inclusion of receiving water limitations in
MS4 permits and an iterative process for assessing MS4 compliance against water
quality standards identified in the applicable water quality control plan(s) and applicable
federal water quality criteria. As a result, this interim guidance rests on the conclusion
that controlling State Water Board precedent requires MS4 permits to continue including
receiving water limitations.

Scope of Interim Guidance

This interim guidance only concerns phase 1 MS4 NPDES permits and is in addition to
interim guidance for individual NPDES wastewater permits released May 14, 2025. No
decision has been made yet on general NPDES permits (e.g., industrial and
construction stormwater general permits, the Small MS4 Permit, other stormwater
general permits, and pesticides and other non-stormwater general permits), so this
interim guidance should not be used for those types of NPDES permits. This interim
guidance also does not apply to non-NPDES waste discharge requirements, Clean
Water Act section 401 water quality certifications, water recycling requirements, or
waivers of waste discharge requirements, none of which are affected by City and
County of San Francisco v. U.S. EPA.

Definition of Receiving Water Limitations/End-Result Requirements

This interim guidance concerns what the U.S. Supreme Court called “end-result
requirements” but are often characterized by Clean Water Act permitting agencies as
“receiving water limitations.” The two terms are used synonymously in this interim
guidance. As stated by the U.S. Supreme Court, end-result requirements are:

provisions that do not spell out what a permittee must do or refrain from
doing; rather, they make a permittee responsible for the quality of the water
in the body of water into which the permittee discharges pollutants.

" Phase 1 permits generally are municipal separate storm sewer systems serving populations over
100,000, including the permit issued to the California Department of Transportation.

Released 7/31/2025 (Phase 1 MS4 RWL Interim Guidance) Page 1
30



City and County of San Francisco, California v. Environmental Protection Agency (2025)
145 S.Ct. 704, 710. The specific requirements at issue in the U.S. Supreme Court case
were prohibitions on (1) any discharge that “contribute[s] to a violation of any applicable

water quality standard” for receiving waters; and (2) any discharge that “create[s]

pollution, contamination, or nuisance as defined by California Water Code
section 13050.”

When considering issuance/reissuance of a phase 1 MS4 NPDES permit, findings

should be updated to reflect (i) the inapplicability of City and County of San

Francisco v. U.S. EPA to MS4 permits and (ii) that State Water Board precedential
decisions govern the inclusion of receiving water limitations in MS4 permits, and
those decisions rely on Clean Water Act section 402(p)(3)(B) and are separately

grounded in independent state law authority.

Model findings to include in newly issued/reissued phase 1 MS4 permits are set forth

below.

MODEL FINDING RECOGNIZING CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO V. U.S. EPA DOES NOT

APPLY TO MS4 NPDES PERMITS:

Released 7/31/2025 (Phase 1 MS4 RWL Interim Guidance)

This order conditions the discharge of pollutants from MS4s to satisfy
requirements of Clean Water Act section 402(p)(3)(B). The recent U.S.
Supreme Court decision City and County of San Francisco, California v.
Environmental Protection Agency (2025) 145 S.Ct. 704 holds that NPDES
permits issued by the U.S. EPA to implement Clean Water Act section
301(b)(1)(C) (33 U.S.C. § 1311(b)(1)(C)) may not include “end-result
requirements,” which are provisions that do not spell out what a permittee
must do or refrain from doing; rather, they make a permittee responsible for
the quality of the water in the body of water into which the permittee
discharges pollutants.

Under the Clean Water Act, MS4 discharges are not required to strictly
comply with water quality standards pursuant to Clean Water Act section
301(b)(1)(C). (Defenders of Wildlife v. Browner (9th Cir. 1999) 191 F.3d
1159.) MS4 discharges must meet a technology-based standard of
prohibiting non-storm water discharges and reducing pollutants in the
discharge to the Maximum Extent Practicable (MEP) in all cases, but
requiring strict compliance with water quality standards (e.g., by imposing
numeric effluent limitations) is at the discretion of the permitting agency. (33
U.S.C. § 1342(p)(3)(B); Defenders of Wildlife, supra.) To the extent NPDES
permitting authorities impose conditions requiring discharges to meet water
quality standards, either strictly or through an iterative process, they are
relying on authority in Clean Water Act section 402(p)(3)(B) to include “such
other provisions as the Administrator or the State determines appropriate
for the control of such pollutants.” (33 U.S.C. § 1342(p)(3)(B)(iii).) This order
is not based on Clean Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C). Nothing in the U.S.
Supreme Court’s holding in City and County of San Francisco addressed

Page 2
31



Clean Water Act section 402(p)(3)(B), and the U.S. Supreme Court
grounded its decision limiting end-result requirements in Clean Water Act
section 301(b)(1)(C). (City and County of San Francisco, supra, at pp. 10-
20.) As a result, City and County of San Francisco does not limit the
inclusion of receiving water limitations in this MS4 NPDES order.

MODEL FINDING RECOGNIZING STATE WATER BOARD PRECEDENTIAL DECISIONS:

This order includes receiving water limitations not only in recognition of the
authority conveyed by Clean Water Act section 402(p)(3)(B) and recognized
by Defenders of Wildlife, but alternatively as a matter of independent state
law authority (33 U.S.C. § 1370). Under the Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act, waste discharge requirements must implement applicable
water quality control plans, which include the beneficial uses to be protected
for a given water body and the water quality objectives reasonably required
for that protection. (Wat. Code, § 13263.) When implementing requirements
under the Porter-Cologne Act that are not compelled by federal law, the
Water Boards have some flexibility to consider other factors, such as
economics, when establishing the appropriate requirements. (Wat. Code,
§§ 13241, 13263; City of Burbank v. State Water Resources Control
Bd. (2005) 35 Cal.4th 613.) Accordingly, since the Water Boards have
discretion under federal law to determine whether to require MS4
discharges to strictly comply with water quality standards identified in
applicable water quality control plans and federal water quality criteria, the
Water Boards may also utilize the flexibility under the Porter-Cologne Act to
decline to require MS4 discharges to strictly comply with water quality
standards. (See also, State Water Board Order WQ 2015-0075 (Los
Angeles MS4), p. 14, n. 51.)

Multiple State Water Board precedential decisions guide and control the
Water Boards in requiring MS4 NPDES permits to include receiving water
limitations based on state water quality standards identified in applicable
water quality control plan and applicable federal water quality criteria and to
implement such limitations through an iterative process, and over time
through appropriate watershed management plans. (State Water Board
Orders WQ 98-01 (Environmental Health Coalition), WQ 99-05
(Environmental Health Coalition), WQ 2001-15 (Building Industry
Association of San Diego), WQ 2015-0075.) That iterative process involves
reporting of the exceedance of an applicable water quality standard,
submission of a report describing proposed improvements to BMPs
expected to better meet water quality standards and an implementation
schedule, and implementation of these new or improved BMPs in
accordance with the approved schedule. (State Water Board Order WQ 99-
05, pp. 2-3; see also State Water Board Order WQ 2001-15, pp. 7-9.) The
State Water Board previously found it appropriate to require implementation
of BMPs in lieu of numeric water quality-based effluent limitations to meet
water quality standards. (See State Water Board Orders WQ 91-03
(Citizens for a Better Environment), WQ 91-04 (Natural Resources Defense

Released 7/31/2025 (Phase 1 MS4 RWL Interim Guidance) Page 3
32



Council), WQ 98-01, WQ 2001-15.) In 2015, the State Water Board
supplemented its prior precedent and included further direction to allow
appropriate watershed management plans to provide an additional pathway
for compliance with water quality standards. (WQ 2015-0075, pp. 15-17.)
The State Water Board’s precedential decisions direct the Water Boards to
require compliance with water quality standards through incorporation of
receiving water limitations provisions consistent with State Water Board
Order WQ 99-05.

Because City and County of San Francisco did not construe Clean Water
Act section 402(p)(3)(B) or apply to MS4 NPDES permits, but also in
recognition that states may include such other provisions as determined
appropriate for the control of pollution from MS4s (33 U.S.C.
§ 1342(p)(3)(B)(iii)) and include more stringent requirements than the
federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1370) and that multiple State Water
Board precedential orders require inclusion of receiving water limitations
and provisions incorporating an iterative approach to implementing water
quality standards, this order retains receiving water limitations consistent
with State Water Board Order WQ 2015-0075 and prior precedent.

In addition, the Water Boards should work with their counsel to consider findings
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which is largely
inapplicable to NPDES permits pursuant to Water Code section 13389, and Water
Code section 13241 recognizing that maintaining receiving water limitations will
not cause a direct or indirect physical change in the environment (Pub.
Resources Code, § 21065) or require additional actions implicating
considerations in Water Code section 13241.

Released 7/31/2025 (Phase 1 MS4 RWL Interim Guidance) Page 4
33



INTERIM GUIDANCE FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF RECEIVING WATER
LIMITATIONS/END-RESULT REQUIREMENTS IN INDIVIDUAL NPDES
WASTEWATER PERMITS

This document outlines a stepwise approach for the Water Boards to follow in
issuing/re-issuing individual wastewater NPDES permits following the U.S. Supreme
Court’s decision in City and County of San Francisco v. U.S. EPA. The consensus of the
MCC was to rely on water quality-based effluent limitations to protect water quality and
implement Clean Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C), as opposed to continuing past practice
and incorporating receiving water limitations based on Porter-Cologne authorities for
individual NPDES wastewater permits. However, language is included at the end of this
guidance for the special circumstances where a Water Board chooses to retain the
longstanding nuisance language derived from Water Code section 13263.

Scope of Interim Guidance

This interim guidance only concerns individual NPDES wastewater permits. No decision
has been made yet on individual stormwater permits (e.g., regional MS4s, Caltrans
MS4, and individual industrial stormwater permits) or general permits (e.g., IGP, CGP,
Small MS4, pesticides, and other non-stormwater general permits), so this interim
guidance should not be used for those types of NPDES permits. This interim guidance
also does not apply to non-NPDES waste discharge requirements, water recycling
requirements, or waivers of waste discharge requirements, none of which are affected
by City and County of San Francisco v. U.S. EPA.

Definition of Receiving Water Limitations/End-Result Requirements

This guidance concerns what the U.S. Supreme Court called “end-result requirements”
but are often characterized by Clean Water Act permitting agencies as “receiving water
limitations.” The two terms are used synonymously in this interim guidance. As stated by
the U.S. Supreme Court, end-result requirements are:

provisions that do not spell out what a permittee must do or refrain from doing;
rather, they make a permittee responsible for the quality of the water in the body
of water into which the permittee discharges pollutants.

City and County of San Francisco, California v. Environmental Protection Agency (2025)
145 S.Ct. 704, 710. The specific requirements at issue in the U.S. Supreme Court case
were prohibitions on (1) any discharge that “contribute[s] to a violation of any applicable
water quality standard” for receiving waters; and (2) any discharge that “create[s]
pollution, contamination, or nuisance as defined by California Water Code section
13050.”

Step 1: Review the existing NPDES permit before reissuance or circulation of
draft NPDES permit and identify receiving water limitations.

This review should extend to each requirement in the NPDES permit, regardless of
whether it appears under a section labeled “receiving water limitations.” If the condition
expresses a requirement as a condition to be achieved in the receiving water, as
opposed to a requirement for the point source discharge or operation of the facility, it

Released 5/14/2025 (RWL Interim Guidance) Page 1
34



may be a receiving water limitation. Note that using a condition in the receiving water to
trigger an effluent-limitation or other limitation does not run afoul of the Supreme Court’s
decision because it does not make the discharger responsible for the condition of the
receiving water and does spell out what the discharger must do. (See also Step 3.1
below.)

IMPORTANT POINTS: (1) Do not rely on headings; (2) Do not assume all receiving
water limitations are within the “receiving water limitations” section of the permit;
and (3) Do not assume all requirements in the receiving water limitations section
of the permit are actually receiving water limitations.

EXAMPLES OF RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS OUTSIDE OF “RECEIVING WATER
LIMITATIONS” SECTION:

Region 2

Regional Standard Provisions (Attachment G in all NPDES wastewater
permits), provision G.I.I.1 (the provision challenged in City and County of
San Francisco) is a receiving water limitation:

Neither the treatment nor the discharge of pollutants shall create
pollution, contamination, or nuisance as defined by California Water
Code section 13050.

Order R2-2017-0048, “Discharge Prohibitions” section includes the
following receiving water limitations:

Discharge of silt, sand, clay, or other earthen materials in quantities
sufficient to cause deleterious bottom deposits, turbidity, or
discoloration in surface waters, or to unreasonably affect or
threaten to affect beneficial uses, is prohibited.

Discharge of pollutants so as to create pollution, contamination, or
nuisance as defined by Water Code section 13050 is prohibited.

Region 9

Point Loma Permit — Discharge Specifications section incorporates the Ocean
Plan almost word for word, which is outside the Receiving Water Limitations
section — and a section on Receiving Water Violation Assessment

e 4.2.1 Waste management systems that discharge to the Pacific Ocean
must be designed and operated in a manner that will maintain the
indigenous marine life and a healthy and diverse marine community.

e 4.2.2 Waste discharged to the ocean must be essentially free of:

0 4.2.2.2 Settleable material or substances that may form sediments
which will degrade benthic communities or other aquatic life;

o0 4.2.2.3 Substances which will accumulate to toxic levels in marine
waters, sediments, or biota;

Released 5/14/2025 (RWL Interim Guidance) Page 2
35



0 4.2.2.4 Substances that significantly decrease the natural light to
benthic communities and other marine life; and

0 4.2.2.5 Materials that result in aesthetically undesirable
discoloration of the ocean surface.

Step 2: Assess whether the existing receiving water limitations can be reframed
as an effluent limitation at the discharge point or in facility operations, if
necessary, to protect the receiving water.

The Supreme Court’s decision is solely about requirements expressed as conditions in
the receiving water and making the discharger responsible for those conditions. Before
removing a receiving water limitation altogether, determine whether the provision can be
reframed as a limitation on the discharge. For example, if an existing permit limitation
specifies that the receiving water shall be free of floatable materials and solids, that
limitation could be reframed as a discharge prohibition or effluent limitations prohibiting
the discharge of floatable and solid materials.

Step 3: Assess whether remaining requirements are protective of water quality
standards as required by Clean Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C). (33 U.S.C.

§ 1311(b)(1)(C).)

Using the permit writer’s best professional judgment, assess whether the treatment
requirements, operational restrictions, and other effluent limitations (whether narrative
or numeric) will sufficiently protect receiving water quality and that the receiving water
will meet water quality standards. This assessment should include review of any
applicable total maximum daily loads or other basin plan provisions for the receiving
water, and may warrant a reassessment of existing reasonable potential analyses. The
assessment can be qualitative in nature based on information about the discharger and
pollutants likely present in its waste discharge. If appropriate, a Water Board may issue
Water Code section 13267 or 13383 orders to gather additional monitoring data.

Step 3.1. If the assessment leads the permit writer to conclude additional
requirements are necessary, the permit should be revised to include treatment
requirements, operational restrictions, or other effluent limitations (whether
narrative or numeric) or limitations to sufficiently protect receiving water quality
and ensure that the receiving water will meet water quality standards.

The revisions to the permit could come in the form of modification to existing
permit requirements to make them more stringent or could come in the form of
new permit requirements. An effluent limitation or other permit limitation can be
triggered based on characteristics in the receiving water limitations. For example,
if the receiving water is above a certain temperature the permit could include an
effluent limitation specifying a temperature effluent limitation. These limitations
could cover a range of receiving water conditions. In addition, when developing
effluent limitations or other limitations to implement a prior receiving water
limitation, consider whether a compliance schedule or time schedule order is
necessary to allow time for upgraded treatment processes or special studies to
support removal of the limitation. Only after any applicable new permit
requirements are established in the draft permit, proceed to the next step.

Released 5/14/2025 (RWL Interim Guidance) Page 3
36



Step 3.2. Update permit findings to reflect that the existing and new requirements
satisfy Clean Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C).

MODEL FINDING IF REMOVING EXISTING RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS AND NO NEW
PERMIT REQUIREMENTS ESTABLISHED: This order removes generalized receiving
water limitations contained in the discharger’s prior waste discharge
requirements that served as backstops for unanticipated circumstances or
changes to effluent quality that could affect water quality. The receiving water
limitations made the discharger responsible for the quality of the water in the
body of water into which the permittee discharges pollutants, without specifying
specific requirements (e.g., effluent limitations) or other actions the discharger
must take that apply at or before the discharge point. The board took this action
to address the U.S. Supreme Court’s decision in City and County of San
Francisco, California v. Environmental Protection Agency (2025) 145 S.Ct. 704,
holding that NPDES permits issued by the U.S. EPA may not include end-result
requirements, which are provisions that do not spell out what a permittee must do
or refrain from doing; rather, they make a permittee responsible for the quality of
the water in the body of water into which the permittee discharges pollutants.

The board has reviewed the remaining permit requirements and concluded that
the discharger’s compliance with remaining permit requirements will ensure that
the discharge satisfies the requirements of Clean Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C)
(33 U.S.C. § 1311(b)(1)(C)) that the permit include any more stringent limitation,
including those necessary to meet water quality standards. If unanticipated
circumstances or changes to effluent quality occur during the permit term, the
board may reopen the permit to include any limitations necessary to protect
water quality. [***OPTIONAL — If the board performed a qualitive reasonable
potential analysis and decided to require additional monitoring during the term of
the permit to validate that analysis, note that in the findings***]

MODEL FINDING IF REMOVING EXISTING RECEIVING WATER LIMITATIONS AND NEW
PERMIT REQUIREMENTS ESTABLISHED: This order removes generalized receiving
water limitations contained in the discharger’s prior waste discharge
requirements that made the discharger responsible for the quality of the water in
the body of water into which the permittee discharges pollutants, without
specifying specific requirements (e.g., effluent limitations) or other actions the
discharger must take that apply at or before the discharge point. The board took
this action to address the U.S. Supreme Court’s decision in City and County of
San Francisco, California v. Environmental Protection Agency (2025) 145 S.Ct.
704, holding that NPDES permits issued by the U.S. EPA may not include end-
result requirements—provisions that do not spell out what a permittee must do or
refrain from doing; rather, they make a permittee responsible for the quality of the
water in the body of water into which the permittee discharges pollutants.[FN*]

[FN*. While the board removed generalized receiving water limitations in
furtherance of the U.S. Supreme Court’s decision interpreting the Clean Water
Act’'s NPDES requirements, the board may decide in the future to include similar
requirements as a matter of state authority.]

Released 5/14/2025 (RWL Interim Guidance) Page 4
37



The board reviewed the remaining permit requirements and concluded that
additional requirements were necessary to ensure the discharge satisfies the
requirements of Clean Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C) (33 U.S.C. §
1311(b)(1)(C)) that the permit include any more stringent limitation, including
those necessary to meet water quality standards. Specifically, the board added:
[ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS ADDED AS PART OF PERMIT REISSUANCE].
[**OPTIONAL - If the board included additional monitoring during the permit
term to support future reasonable potential analysis related to the removal of the
receiving water limitations, include language such as “In addition, this order
includes additional monitoring for XXX, YYY, and ZZZ during the term of the
order to support a future reasonable potential analysis.”***]

MODEL FINDING FOR NEW PERMIT: The board has reviewed the permit
requirements and concluded that the discharger’s compliance with permit
requirements will ensure that the discharge satisfies the requirements of Clean
Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C) (33 U.S.C. § 1311(b)(1)(C)) that the permit
include any more stringent limitation, including those necessary to meet water
quality standards.

Step 4: For Reissued Permits Include Model Findings to Address Anti-Backsliding
and Anti-Degradation

MODEL FINDING IF NEwW PERMIT REQUIREMENTS ESTABLISHED: As discussed in Finding #,
this order removes generalized receiving water limitations contained in the discharger’s
prior waste discharge requirements. The removal of this requirement is consistent with
the U.S. Supreme Court’s holding in City and County of San Francisco, California v.
Environmental Protection Agency (2025) 145 S.Ct. 704. However, as discussed in
Finding #, the board has included additional requirements to ensure the discharge
complies with Clean Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C) (33 U.S.C. § 1311(b)(1)(C)). As a
result, the discharge does not authorize violations of water quality standards, and the
removal of the generalized receiving water limitation does not authorize the additional
discharge of pollutants or authorize the violation of water quality standards. The order
does not, therefore, authorize either backsliding or further degradation of water quality.

MODEL FINDING IF NO NEwW PERMIT REQUIREMENTS ESTABLISHED: As discussed in Finding
#, this order removes generalized receiving water limitations contained in the
discharger’s prior waste discharge requirements. The removal of this requirement is
consistent with the U.S. Supreme Court’s holding in City and County of San Francisco,
California v. Environmental Protection Agency (2025) 145 S.Ct. 704. However, as
discussed in Finding #, the board has determined that the existing requirements are
sufficient to ensure the discharge complies with Clean Water Act section 301(b)(1)(C)
(33 U.S.C. § 1311(b)(1)(C)). As a result, the discharge does not authorize violations of
water quality standards, and the removal of the generalized receiving water limitation
does not authorize the additional discharge of pollutants or authorize the violation of
water quality standards. The order does not, therefore, authorize either backsliding or
further degradation of water quality.

Released 5/14/2025 (RWL Interim Guidance) Page 5
38



Step 5: Review Final Draft of Permit to Reconcile Changes and Headings.

In making the changes identified above, it is possible that the permit will retain some
requirements in the receiving water limitations section, even if they are recast as
effluent limitations. For example, requirements triggered based on conditions in the
receiving water may appropriately remain in a receiving water limitations section. It is
also possible that the permit will no longer have any requirements in its receiving water
limitations section. If so, consider removing the section or include a statement in the
section to the effect that the current iteration of the NPDES permit does not include
receiving water limitations.

Optional Language to Preserve Nuisance Provision under State Law for Existing
NPDES Dischargers

Some regions have expressed an interest in preserving the nuisance receiving water
language under state law authority. The language below would be used for a facility
regulated under an existing NPDES permit where the Water Board seeks to maintain
the nuisance receiving water limitations language when reissuing the NPDES permit.
For new NPDES discharges, the region should work closely with its assigned counsel to
determine whether additional findings are appropriate.

A region that maintains the nuisance receiving water limitations language should take
the following steps

(1) Modify NPDES standard finding 2.3 (Provisions and Requirements Implementing
State Law) to reference the permit provision containing the nuisance provision.

(2) MoDEL FINDING FOR MAINTAINING NUISANCE RECEIVING WATER LIMITATION: As
discussed in Finding # and ##, this order removes generalized receiving water
limitations contained in the discharger’s prior waste discharge requirements from
the Clean Water Act NPDES provisions and requirements of this order.
Subsection #.# maintains, as a matter of state law, the requirements that neither
the treatment nor discharge shall create nuisance as defined by Water Code
section 13050. The board has maintained this requirement as a state law
requirement to implement Water Code section 13263, which identifies the need
to prevent nuisance as a basis for issuing waste discharge requirements. The
U.S. Supreme Court’s decision in City and County of San Francisco v. U.S. EPA
did not interpret the Water Code. Further, there is no provision of the Water Code
analogous to the NPDES permit shield that was the basis of the U.S. Supreme
Court’s decision. Likewise, the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act has
consistently recognized the ability of the Water Boards to regulate to prevent
nuisance and the Porter-Cologne Act does not share the legislative history of the
federal Clean Water Act. This order therefore maintains the existing nuisance
language to continue nuisance protections as a matter of state law.

(3) In addition, the Water Board should work with counsel to consider findings under
CEQA and Water Code section 13241 recognizing that maintaining the nuisance
receiving water limitation will not cause a direct or indirect physical change in the
environment (Public Resources Code, § 21065) or require additional actions
implicating considerations in Water Code section 13241.

Released 5/14/2025 (RWL Interim Guidance) Page 6
39





